THE EXECUTIVE

Minutes of the meeting held on 31 May 2016

- PRESENT: Councillor leuan Williams (Chair) Councillor J Arwel Roberts (Vice-Chair) Councillors K P Hughes, A M Jones, H E Jones and Alwyn Rowlands. IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Executive. Assistant Chief Executive (Governance and Business Process Transformation) (for items 10, 12 & 13), Assistant Chief Executive (Partnerships, Community and Service Improvement), Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer, Head of Democratic Services (for item 4), Head of Transformation (for item 5), Head of Children's Services (for items 9, 11 & 12), Principal Valuation Officer (TDE) (for item 8), Senior Property Officer (Property) (GJ) (for item 13), Housing Strategy and Development Manager (LR) (for item 13). Senior Planning Officer (Joint Planning Policy Unit) (ME) (for item 13). Committee Officer (MEH).
- ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Lewis Davies, Jeff M. Evans, John Griffith, R. Meirion Jones, Alun Mummery.
- **APOLOGIES:** Councillor R A Dew.

1 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

No declaration of interest was received.

2 URGENT MATTERS CERTIFIED BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OR HIS APPOINTED OFFICER

None reported.

3 MINUTES

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Executive held on 25 April, 2016 were presented for confirmation.

It was RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous meeting of the Executive held on 25 April, 2016 be confirmed as correct.

4 THE EXECUTIVE'S FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The report of the Head of Democratic Services incorporating the Executive's Forward Work Programme for the period June 2016 to January 2017 was presented for the Executive's approval.

The Head of Democratic Services reported on the changes in the updated Work Programme as follows :-

- Items 2 and 7 are new to the Executive's Work Programme and will be discussed at the 20 June, 2016 meeting;
- A new item on Lowering the Admission Age for Brynsiencyn Primary School will be discussed at the 20 June, 2016 meeting;
- Items 13 and 17 are new to the Executive's Work Programme and will be discussed at the 19 September, 2016 meeting;
- Item 19 are new to the Executive's Work Programme and will be discussed at the 17 October, 2016 meeting.

It was RESOLVED to confirm the Executive's updated Forward Work Programme for the period June 2016 to January 2017.

5 CORPORATE SCORECARD - QUARTER 4, 2015/16

The report of the Head of Corporate Transformation incorporating the final scorecard of the financial year 2015/16 was presented for the Executive's consideration.

The Portfolio Holder for Human Resources, Information Technology and Council Business stated that he was disappointed with the increase in the long term sickness absence figures which were highlighted within the report. However, he noted that the 'Back to Work' interview figures had improved and sickness levels needs to be addressed within the 'back to work' interview. He noted that discussions have taken place within the Senior Leadership Team; each department will be required to address the issue of sickness absence. The Portfolio Holder stated that a Members Workshop will be arranged to discussion issues relating to the way forward to improving sickness absence across the authority.

The Chief Executive reiterated that the SLT have given considerable attention to the long term sickness levels. He noted that the Human Resources Section have been asked to produce an action plan to be submitted to the next Senior Leadership Team, with regard to the processes and practices with regard to sickness management.

It was RESOLVED to accept the report and to note the mitigation measures as outlined within the report.

6 REVENUE BUDGET DRAFT OUTTURN 2015/16

The report of the Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer setting out the provisional outturn for the financial year 2015/16 was presented to the Executive for consideration.

The Portfolio Holder (Finance) stated that the overall projected financial position for 2015/16 on budgets controlled by services has shown an underspend of £1.8m. However he noted that after taking into account the additional funding provided during the year, one off items of income and the reduction in capital financing costs, the final outturn highlighted budget pressures Service budgets and in particular on the demand lead services e.g. Children's Services. He wished to thank the Senior Leadership Team, the Finance Department for their hard work in respect of the performance of the underspend in the revenue budget for 2015/16.

It was RESOLVED to note the following :-

- The position set out in respect of financial performance for 2015/16;
- The outturn reported within the report remains provisional until the completion of the statutory audit.

7 CAPITAL OUTTURN REPORT 2015/16

The report of the Head of Function (Resources)/Section 151 Officer setting out the financial performance of the Capital budget for the 2015/16 financial year, subject to audit was presented to the Executive for consideration.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance highlighted that the final outturn position showed an underspend of £14.3m, mainly arising from slippage in the 21st Century Schools programme and on HRA projects. £7.8m of the slippage will be carried forward to the 2016/17 capital programme. He referred to the capital receipts of £4m received through the sale of assets. The income from the sale of smallholdings was £1.2m below the anticipated level although further sales will take place in 2016/17. These additional sales will ensure that the expenditure incurred on the Smallholdings improvement programme will be fully funded from capital receipts.

It was RESOLVED :-

- To note the draft outturn position of the Capital Programme 2015/16 that is subject to audit;
- To approve the carry-forward of £7.791m to 2016/17 for the underspend on the programme due to slippage.

8 ASSET MANAGEMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES

The report of the Head of Highways, Waste & Property was incorporating the reviewed Asset Management Policy and Procedures – Policy Review was submitted for the Executive's approval.

It was RESOLVED to endorse the report and adopt the amended Policy.

9 ANGLESEY'S INFORMATION, ADVICE AND ASSISTANCE HUB

The report of the Head of Children's Services was presented seeking the Executive's approval to establish an 'Anglesey Hub' with regard to the above.

The Portfolio Holder (Housing & Social Services) outlined the report to the Committee with regard to Anglesey's Information, Advice and Assistance Hub.

The Head of Children's Services stated it is essential when children and their families and carers require additional support they are able to access information, advice and assistance so that they can make informed decisions on how best to achieve their desired outcomes. This is a period of major change, with the advent of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and establishing an Information Advice and Assistance Service is a requirement of that Act. Establishing the Information Advice and Assistance Service will enable the Local Authority to improve the citizens' experience of finding out about care, support and ensure a co-ordinated approach to the pathways of support.

It was RESOLVED :-

- To approve the establishment of an 'Anglesey Hub', which will act as a 'one stop shop' for any enquiries relating to the provision of Information, Advice and Assistance (Social Services and Wellbeing) for Children and Families on Anglesey;
- To note that Part 9 of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act states that the Director of Social Services has overall responsibility for the Information, Advice and Assistance Service; that this be delegated on her behalf to the Head of Children Services and that the new service sits under the management of Children's Services.

10 COMMISSIONING BOARD FOR NORTH WALES

The report of the Head of Adult's Services was presented seeking the Executive's approval to establish a Commissioning Board for North Wales.

It was RESOLVED to agree to the establishment of a Commissioning Board for North Wales to replace the former Regional Commissioning, Procurement and Monitoring Hub.

11 PROGRESS REPORT ON THE NORTH WALES REGIONAL SAFEGUARDING BOARDS FOR CHILDREN AND OLDER PEOPLE

The progress report of the Assistant Chief Executive as Statutory Director of Social Services was presented with regard to the North Wales Regional Safeguarding Boards for Children and Older People for the Executive's consideration.

It was RESOLVED to note the contents of the progress report prepared by the Business Manager of the Boards and that a report within a year regarding progress on identified priorities.

12 REGIONAL PARTNERSHIP BOARD

The joint report of the Head of Children's Services and the Head of Adult's Services was presented for the Executive's approval with regard to the establishment of a Regional Partnership Board.

The Portfolio Holder (Housing & Social Services) stated that the Social Services and Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014 requires the establishment of a Regional Partnership Board which are statutory boards within each region in Wales. The Act also requires local authorities to make arrangements to promote co-operation with their relevant partners and others in relation to adults with needs for care and support, carers and children. He further stated that the Act also provides for partnership arrangements between local authorities and Local Health Boards for the discharge of their functions.

The Assistant Chief Executive (Governance and Business Process Transformation) stated that there has been extensive regional partnership working between North Wales authorities for a number of years. The workshop held on 14 March, 2016 with members of the current Partnership Forum and Leadership Groups considered two options to comply with the requirements within Part 9 of the Social Services and Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014. It was agreed that the preferred option was Option 1as it was not felt that the Regional Partnership Board would be able to manage the mixing of strategic and operational responsibilities and it was felt that this would impede its effectiveness. The Assistant Chief Executive further stated that a representative from the Betsi Cadwaladr Health Board will also be a member of the Board.

The Chair referred to the Public Services Board and expressed his concern that there might be some duplication of service with the Regional Partnership Board. He hoped that a review of the services provided by both the Boards will be undertaken. The Chair asked for a presentation on the performance of the Boards can be afforded to the monthly Elected Members briefing meetings within 3 to 6 months.

It was RESOLVED to approve the establishment of a Regional Partnership Board as outline in Option 1 of the report.

13 CONSULTATION ON TRAVELLER AND GYPSY SITES IN ANGLESEY - THE CONSULTATION PROCESS

The report of the Head of Housing Services was presented to the Executive for consideration with regard to the consultation on Traveller and Gypsy Sites.

The Portfolio Holder (Housing & Social Services) stated that extensive consultation has been given to the proposals for possible gypsy and travellers sites, with public meetings, 'drop-in' sessions and meetings with Town and Community Councils and

Officers of the County Council. The opinion of gypsies and travellers also needed to be heard within the consultation process and an independent facilitator has facilitated this process. He stated that 3 sites need to be identified on Anglesey – a temporary stopping place in Holyhead, a temporary stopping place in the Centre of the Island, and a permanent site in the Menai area for the four households who at present are located at an unauthorised encampment in the lay-by on the A5025 near Pentraeth. This process of identifying Traveller and Gypsy Sites is a statutory duty under the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 which also strengthens the requirement that local authorities identify and make provision for sufficient appropriate sites in their Local Development Plans. He stated that the gypsy and traveller community have a statutory right to live the way the wish but they also must respect the authority's rights to ensure that they respect the rules that will be in place on the identified site. He noted that financial assistance by Welsh Government will be afforded to local authorities to establish a permanent traveller sites but no financial assistance will be given to the establishment of temporary stopping places.

The Portfolio Holder referred to the 3 sites identified in Holyhead and none of the sites are suitable to progress or to be included in the Local Development Plan. Discussion will now be undertaken with the Port Authority within the next few weeks. 2 sites were identified in the Centre of the Island but none of the sites were suitable and a further consultation process will be needed to locate a suitable temporary stopping place for gypsies and travellers, with a future consultation including privately owned land.

The Portfolio Holder referred to the permanent site required in the Menai area and stated that the site located at the lay-by on the A5025 near Pentraeth is inadequate due to its position near a busy main road. The site at present is tolerated until the Council is able to identify a suitable permanent site for the travellers. Whilst the Council own the land proposed for a permanent site at Penhesgyn near Penmynydd, negotiations with the landowner would need to take place to secure suitable access to the site, with the possible purchase of the land. It is therefore recommended that the land at Penhesgyn is included in the Joint Local Development Plan.

The Chair referred to the recent special meeting of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee held on 13th May, 2016 which discussed the Gypsy and Travellers site and considered that valid and meaningful discussions took place at the meeting. He invited Councillor Alun Mummery, Vice-Chair of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee to address the meeting.

Councillor Mummery stated that the Scrutiny Committee were afforded a presentation with regard to the gypsy and traveller's site consultation process and site selection. He noted that the Independent Facilitator who had been asked by the Council to liaise with the gypsy traveller communities and seek their views as part of the consultation afforded an opportunity to address the meeting together with members of the public who had concerns regarding the sites for gypsy and travellers. He referred to the recommendations of the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee to the Executive.

The Assistant Chief Executive (Governance and Business Process Transformation) stated that following the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee held on 13th May, 2016 the report on the Permanent Sites in the Menai Area had been updated to address the concerns of the committee with regard to the site at Penhesgyn near Penmynydd in connection with air pollution as it is near the recycling centre. An air quality assessment was commissioned during the consultation process and the summary of the finding were included within the report on the site at Penhesgyn. The Scrutiny Committee also raised concerns to the safety of people from the site entering the recycling centre without permission. The Assistant Chief Executive explained that the proposed site at Penhesgyn would be made secure that children and animals would not be able to enter the recycling centre.

The Assistant Chief Executive further stated that concerns were raised at the Scrutiny Committee as to the impact on local residents who live near the proposed site at Penhesgyn. She noted that the location of the site within the land available will need to be considered carefully to developed to cater for the needs of the travelers whilst at the same time considering the views and concerns of the local residents.

The Executive gave detailed consideration to the reports on the sites for gypsy and traveller's and considered that the design of the identified proposed site at Penhesgyn is paramount.

It was RESOLVED :-

- To accept the report and to note the consultation processes regarding Gypsy and Traveller site selection.
- That following analysis of the response to the consultation exercise and sites assessment exercises outlined within the reports on the Holyhead, Centre of the Island and Menai vicinity it was agreed :-
 - Holyhead area Temporary Site
 - That none of the three sites included in the consultation to provide a temporary stopping place in the vicinity of Holyhead should be progressed or included in the Local Development Plan;
 - The County Council shall carry out further work to identify alternative sites to meet the need for a temporary stopping place in the Holyhead vicinity, as identified in the statutory Gwynedd and Anglesey Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment 2016 and to comply with the Council's duties under Part 3 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014;
 - Further work should be undertaken to understand the level of use of Holyhead port by Gypsy Travellers and the level of unauthorised encampments occurring as a result of travel to and from the port.
 - That negotiations be undertaken with the Holyhead Port Authority and shipping companies.

- Centre of the Island Temporary Site
 - That none of the two sites included in the consultation process should be progressed or included in the Local Development Plan;
 - The County Council will continue to work to identify alternative sites to meet the need for a temporary stopping place in the Centre of the Island, as identified in the statutory Gwynedd and Anglesey Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs assessment 2016 and to comply with the Council's duties under Part 3 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014;
- Menai Area Permanent Site
 - That land at Penhesgyn near Penmynydd be selected as a possible allocation to meet the accommodation needs of Gypsy and Travellers, subject to the outcome of further investigations to confirm the suitability of the site from a highway safety and health impact perspective and be included in the Joint Local Development Plan;
 - That further engagement be undertaken with the residents of the unauthorised encampment a the lay-by on the A5025 to gain a better understanding of their needs and explain the Council's requirements, and an independent facilitator will be used to facilitate this;
 - That an appropriate consultant be commissioned to prepare site design and submit the requisite planning application: that the consultant and independent facilitator involve the residents of the unauthorised encampments in the design and management of the proposed new site;
 - To engage with local communities and key stakeholders regarding the proposals to develop the site with the aim of building community cohesion;
 - The County Council will enter into discussions with the owner of two fields marked on the (Appendix 1) attached to the report, with a view to their purchase.

The meeting concluded at 11.25 am

COUNCILLOR IEUAN WILLIAMS CHAIR